CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Committee** held on Thursday, 5th December, 2013 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor H Gaddum (Chairman) Councillor L Jeuda (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors R Domleo, I Faseyi, W Livesley, A Moran, J Saunders, M J Weatherill and S Jones

Apologies

Councillor D Hough

ALSO PRESENT

Councillor J Clowes – Health and Adult Social Care Portfolio Holder Jacki Wilkes – Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group Matthew Cunningham – Eastern Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group Jo Vitta – South Cheshire Clinical Commissioning Group Stephen Cross – East Cheshire NHS Trust

OFFICERS PRESENT

Lorraine Butcher – Director of Strategic Commissioning Dr Heather Grimbaldeston – Director of Public Health James Morley – Scrutiny Officer

157 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 November 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

158 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest

159 DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of party whip

160 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak

161 THE ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH

The Committee examined the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health. Dr Heather Grimbaldeston provided a brief recap of the Report which had been submitted to the Committee at the previous meeting. The main focus of the report was preventing early deaths which were any death of someone under the age of 75. In tackling early deaths in the Borough, Public Health would prioritise action to reduce the effects of the four main causes of early deaths: cancer; heart disease and stroke; lung disease; and liver disease.

Cheshire East was performing well compared to the national average but was not performing particularly well relative to comparable authorities with similar characteristics. Many areas of the Borough had very good life expectancy and quality of life however the Borough's average was brought down considerable by poor statistics for large parts of Crewe and some parts of Macclesfield. These health inequalities were a major issue for the Council to address.

The following points were made during discussion:

- It was just as important to focus on ensuring people live good quality lives as it was to ensure people lived longer.
- People had to take responsibility for their own health to live well and longer. It was very difficult to change people attitudes towards their health however lifestyle change was essential for some people to live longer.
- To affect behaviours public health needed to target young people early through their schools by encouraging healthy lifestyles that they would continue throughout their lives.
- The quality of housing had a significant influence on people's health. The Council needed to ensure it had a good quality housing supply in all areas.
- Many of the Council's services that were not health related still had an impact on the health of service users (e.g. transport). The Council needed to examine what could be done to increase the positive impact on peoples' health of these services as well as health services.

RESOLVED – That the Annual Report of the Director of Public Health be noted.

162 WORK PROGRAMME

The Committee considered whether to include an item in the work programme on changes to stroke services at Macclesfield General Hospital. Stroke services were being reorganised by East Cheshire NHS Trust with hyper acute services being transferred to Stockport and Salford. This was going to affect residents in the north of the Borough, residents in Congleton, Holmes Chapel and southern areas of the Borough were linked to the services provided in North Staffordshire.

Members were concerned about the future of Macclesfield General Hospital as services provided there were gradually being reduced. Jacki Wilkes informed the

Committee that stroke recovery phase services would still be provided with patients transferring to Macclesfield after hyper acute phase of strokes.

Members also raised issues for the families of patients who would have to travel further with patients. East Cheshire NHS Trust was focused on the best outcomes for patients however the effects on family and friends would be taken into consideration when making decisions about services.

Members stated that it was important that NHS service providers kept them informed of service changes so that they were able to communicate with the press and public when questions were raised.

The Committee considered the rest of the Work Programme.

RESOLVED – That the next meeting of the Committee on 9 January 2014 be held as an informal meeting.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 11.45 am

Councillor H Gaddum (Chairman)